City of
ASHINGTON 1 ERRACE
Uk

Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, April 1, 2025
5249 South 400 East
Washington Terrace, UT 84405
801.393.8681

www.washingtonterrace.gov

As a public service, Council Meetings are streamed on the City of Washington Terrace YouTube channel at :

www.youtube.com/(@WashingtonTerraceCity

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PERMISSION NOTICE
By attending this meeting/event, you consent to the use of your photograph, voice, likeness, and image in broadcasts
of this meeting/event, and in subsequent productions drawn from video or audio recordings of this meeting/event, in
the sole and absolute discretion of the City of Washington Terrace. The city retains copyright for all video and audio
recordings. Video and audio recordings may not be modified, manipulated, or distributed in any way without the
express written consent of the City Manager.

1.

WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.

PRESENTATION: FY 2026 TENTATIVE BUDGET AND FY 2027-30 BUDGET PLAN
Staff will present to Council the major budget priorities for the FY 26 Tentative Budget and FY 2027-2030 Budget Plan

ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

WELCOME

CONSENT ITEMS
5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MARCH 18, 2025, COUNCIL MEETING

Any point of order or issue regarding items on the agenda or the order of the agenda needs to be addressed here
prior to the approval of the agenda. Minutes approved in open meeting become the official record

CITIZEN COMMENTS

This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas that are not on the agenda as part of a
public hearing. Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes. “Washington Terrace City is committed to
civility. We strive to act and speak with dignity, courtesy, and respect at all times. All are asked to join us, and act and
speak accordingly.”

NEW BUSINESS
7.1 PRESENTATION: FISCAL YEAR 2026 TENTATIVE BUDGET AND FISCAL YEAR
2027-2030 BUDGET PLAN

Review of work session highlights concerning the Fiscal Year Tentative Budget and Budget Plans.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at
801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.



8. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF

This is a discussion item only. No final action will be taken.

9. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

This is an opportunity for staff to address the Council pertaining to administrative items.

10. UPCOMING EVENTS
April 15%: City Council Work Session (5:00 p.m.) and City Council Meeting (6:00 p.m.)
April 16-18": ULCT Conference in St. George UT
April 19" 10:00 a.m. EASTER EGG HUNT!!!
April 24%: Planning Commission Meeting (tentative)

11. ADJOURN THE MEETING

12. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING (The RDA meeting will begin immediately
following the regular meeting)

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at
801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.



O NWnN WD

DO DN = = = = = e e e e
— OO0 00 NN LNk W~ OO

NSNS
W N

A A PA DSBS D WLWLWWWLWLWWLWLWWWERNDNDNDNDDNDDND
DN B W — OOV UN K W —= O VN N b~

City of Washington Terrace

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting
Held on March 18, 2025
City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, Utah

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Jill Christiansen
Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan
Council Member Cheryl Parkinson
Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Michael Thomas
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

Lt. Colby Ryan, Weber County Sheriff

OTHERS PRESENT :

1. WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.
Topics to include, but are not limited to:
e  Weber County Sheriff Office Contract Discussion

Hanson stated that Public Safety is always a major budget issue. Hanson stated that we contract with the
Weber County Sheriff’s Office.

Hanson stated that we try to contract and keep the safety service at a reasonable and sustainable price.
Hanson stated that Community Safety is a Policy Priority. Hanson reviewed the priorities with Council.

Hanson stated that officers overlap from the other contract cities and help each other out. Hanson stated
that we are all contributing to general fund operations and premium services through property taxes
(Premium services :SWAT, Search and Rescue, Investigations).

Hanson stated that the contract amount for FY 26 is $1.202, which is a little jump from last year’s contract
of $1.113 (7.99%). Hanson stated that there have been increases in costs in personnel and ancillary
services. Hanson stated that service levels will not change. Hanson stated that the county will be
conducting a wage survey this year. Hanson stated that we want to avoid subsidizing a general fund
project.

Garrett stated that there is a budget summary sheet included in a spreadsheet from the county that explains
the total budget and our allocations. She will email the spreadsheet to the Council.

CC Minutes 03-18-25



46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
&3
&4
85
86
87
88
&9
90
91

Hanson stated that we received $ 1,997,642 in property tax revenue in 2024, noting that $1,202,214 will be
used for the Sheriff Department. Mayor Allen noted that the remainder of the property taxes goes to the
Fire Department for public safety.

Hanson provided a projection of police expenditure showing contract amounts against costs if we had our
own Police Department. She noted that public safety operations normally trend at a higher rate than other
operations. She stated that she believes it is very realistic, noting that if we were to operate our own Police
Department, it could be around 3.1 Million. She stated that the graph does not consider support and
equipment. Mayor Allen stated that people were not happy with the shift from operating our own
department to contracting with the Sheriff Office.

Hanson stated that law enforcement and public safety will be brought back as a major budget issue.

Mayor Allen asked Lt. Ryan about gang activity in the City. Lt. Ryan stated that there was an epidemic of
gang activity a few years back, as gang members moved to the outskirts of Ogden City. He stated that
there may be gang members living in the city, however, he noted that crimes are not being committed in
the city. He stated that he does not believe that the Terrace has a gang problem. Lt. Ryan stated that the
Sheriff’s Office has a deputy as a liaison with the Ogden Gang task force.

Lt. Colby stated that drug houses were mostly run out of the city by the street crimes unit. He stated that
the strike task force is still very busy, however, there is not much activity within the city.

Council Member Parkinson stated that staffing levels must effect our level of services. She stated that she
doesn’t believe that we can justify saying our level of service will remain the same until we know what
impact the staffing issues will have on response, patrols, and other services. She asked that Hanson keep in
communication with the Sheriff and keep an eye on our level of service.

Lt. Colby updated the Council on new recruitment efforts within the department.

CC Minutes 03-18-25



92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103

104
105
106

107
108
109
110

111
112

113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Jill Christiansen

Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan

Council Member Cheryl Parkinson

Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Michael Thomas

Community Development Director Tyler Seaman
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

Lt. Colby Ryan

OTHERS PRESENT :
Kristi Bell, Taven Christensen, Brandon Marino ( BCTC)

2. ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. WELCOME

5. CONSENT ITEMS
5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MARCH 4, 2025, COUNCIL MEETING
Item 5.1 was approved by general consent.

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Kristi Bell stated that she is the Coordinator to the Bonneville Cone of the Community that Cares
Coalition.

She stated that the old drug strategy programs were found to do more damage than they did good. She
stated that the CTC is a more individualized program. She stated that her Bonneville Cone of the CTC
tracks risk factors in our area. She stated that there is a 5K and half marathon run every year. She stated
that she appreciates everything the city has done with their partnership with the CTC and presented the
Council and Mayor with medals from the 5K.

Brandon Marino stated that he enjoyed working with the BCTC youth group. He stated that he was able to
educate classes in an assembly and feels that it was exciting to do something impactful in the community.
He stated that he took part in the legislative session this year with local legislatures and found it very
impactful and exciting. He stated that the skills that he has learned have prepared him for any
opportunities. He stated that he attended a conference in Washington D.C., and it opened his eyes to many
more issues involving alcohol, drugs, and risk factors. He stated that he learned about A.I. and how the
algorithms are targeting what teens view on social media. He stated that he will be advocating the lessons
he has learned in college and throughout the years to come.

Taven Christensen stated that he is the chair of the BCTC youth group. He stated that the trip to

CC Minutes 03-18-25



138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157

158
159

160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183

Washington D.C. was amazing. He stated that advocating and encouraging peers to sign the drug free
pledge is something that he is very proud of. He stated that the environmental scans that the cone does has
been amazing. He stated that he works with Weber Morgan Health in underage tobacco operations.
Christensen stated that Kristi Bell has been an amazing coordinator. He expressed his thanks to the Mayor
and the city for their support with the CTC program. He stated that his group has been reaching out the
junior high students to educate them on the program and drug-free pledges. He stated that the youth group
has been speaking with and educating the junior high students on the importance of the CTC program and
getting them excited to join and do great things in the future.

He stated that he appreciates all the experiences that this coalition provides. He stated that learning about
the bills in the legislature has been invaluable.

Mayor Allen stated that taking the program into the Jr. High School will show to be a huge deal and will
inspire the younger groups to join and be a part of the program. He acknowledged that this is the first year
that Bell was the Coordinator for the Program and has done an amazing job.

Bell stated that the skills that the kids are learning have been invaluable and that the program is now being
offered in junior high schools as well. Bell stated that they have been providing books to the elementary
schools as well, noting that literacy has been shown to be directly tied to coping and learning skills. She
stated that literacy skills and spending time with family have shown to bolster protective factors and
lessons risk factors.

7. NEW BUSINESS
7.1 DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF DONATION TO THE BONNEVILLE
PTSA FOR THE CELEBRATION PARTY FOR THE 2025 GRADUATING CLASS
Hanson stated that the annual party is held for a graduating class activity. He stated that the class president
presented to Council a few weeks back. Hanson stated that the budgeted amount for this donation is
$500.00. Hanson stated that the group will be helping prepare for the Easter Egg hunt.

Motion by Council Member West
Seconded by Council Member Thomas
To approve the annual donation to the
Bonneville PTSA for the Celebration party for 2025 Graduating Class
(For $500.00)
Approved unanimously (5-0)

7.2 DISCUSSION/ACTION: DISCUSSION ON THE ALLOWANCE OF CONDITIONAL
USE PERMITS FOR CONVERSION OF SINGLE FAMILY TO MULTI-FAMILY
HOMES
Hanson stated that the city has conducted a study on rental properties and have discovered that there are
many single-family homes that are renting a basement apartment, essentially making them a multi-family
home. He stated that properties that have upstair/downstair rental apartments that currently have business
license are being allowed to keep their license until the lease/contract runs out and then they will have to
renew their license as a single unit.
Hanson stated that this discussion is part of our Moderate Income Housing discussion. He stated that

CC Minutes 03-18-25



184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229

Seaman will present on several options to see if Council would like to pursue the topic further.

Seaman stated that Council gave him and Heidi Gerritsen (the city Business License Officer) permission to
conduct a business license rental audit.

Seaman explained that Utah law requires that cities allow accessory dwelling units. He explained that an
accessory dwelling unit must be occupied by owners to be allowed a business license. He stated that the
accessory dwelling unit is a room or rental inside the home/attached to the home. He stated that many
people began renting their basements and then decided that it became an investment property and moved
out of the house to rent the upstairs as well as the downstair area.

He stated that Gerritsen has found 72 legal non-conforming rentals within the city. He stated that they may
have been grandfathered in for a myriad of reasons. He stated that some of the owners have provided
information that the rentals are occupied by the owner. He noted that Weber County has recognized some
of the homes as duplexes even though they are not. He noted that those are the types of cases that are hard
to go through legal channels to say that we will not allow them. Seaman stated that throughout the audit
they denied 23 units because they were not able to provide information as to why they assumed that they
were legal duplexes. He stated that the owners came forward and were very honest as to why they believed
that they could rent their basements. Seaman stated that some were told by their realtor that the properties
were duplexes. Seaman stated that these units are considered illegal non-conforming.

Seaman stated that he and Gerritsen suspect at least 21 homes that are renting their basements, or both
floors of their homes without a license. He stated that there are probably more out there that they do not
know about.

Seaman stated that he believes that we would be able to implement an ordinance that would allow these
homes to become legal if they abide by the current building codes. He explained some of the requirements
in the building code.

- Accessory units must have their own exits.

- Code requires that there is fire separation between the apartments. Seaman stated that at least a half
an inch of sheet rock added to their walls or ceilings.

- Each unit would have to have a primary method of egress. Seaman stated that there must be egress
out into the open. He stated that the egress door must be 32”. He stated that there must be at least
two methods of egress doors for each dwelling.

- Each unit must have egress windows that are at least 30 inches wide and 24 inches high. The
maximum height must be 44 inches high.

- Smoke detectors need to be interconnected within the entire home.

- Each unit must have separate electrical control panels with separate outside disconnect panels.

- Each unit must have a separate duct heating systems, as sharing is not allowed.

Seaman stated that the homes would have to conform to current building codes. He stated that many of the
requirements may be cost prohibited and are a huge cost. Seaman explained that the building code side
may cost between $20,000-$50,000 to make the homes legal non-conforming.

Seaman stated that there are other requirements for allowing these types of rental units. He stated that
parking is a big issue to consider. He stated that Council and staff need to think about zoning compliance
and dealing with neighbors who do not want a two-family dwelling unit next door. He stated that he and
Hanson did some reading and found that Provo City writes a letter to the neighbors explaining the situation

and the neighbors can approve or not approve the dwellings.

CC Minutes 03-18-25



230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275

Seaman stated that lot sizes will also play a part in parking.

Seaman stated that there are other factors to consider, such as would the city require a separate impact fee
for the second unit. He also noted that there may be a separate connection fee charged for utilities. He
highlighted that the expectation on the home is that it is a single unit, but now there are two families living
in it and there may be a need for separate sewer system charges, water meter requirements and
connections.

He stated that there is not an additional water meter requirement for the single parcel. He stated that all the
approved units currently are only paying a single rate and questioned if that was fair because they are not
paying for the additional impact of a second unit.

Mayor Allen clarified that if the homes are owner occupied we would have to allow the renting of the
second unit because they are state regulated. He stated that renting to two families, non-owner occupied
are not mentioned or protected by state code. Seaman stated that the 72 legal non-conforming homes are
legal and he cannot do anything about them. He cannot make them change anything to conform to building
code as they allowed by state code. He stated that if they move out of the home, they would need to
conform to building codes at that time.

Mayor Allen stated that many things are affected by the illegal rentals, stating parking issues, impact fees,
water fees and impacts, sewer fees and impacts, and noted that the owners are receiving discounts on
property taxes as a primary dwelling. He stated that this is a disservice to the city.

Mayor Allen stated that he believes that this is a safety issue. He listed the safety reasons for his concerns:
size and height of windows, fire alarms that might not work throughout the house, lack of proper doors and
egress, as well as inability to shut down utilities within both units. He stated that this is a no-brainer
situation.

Council Member Zishan stated that he sides with the Mayor on this one, noting that these are single family
homes that people buy to rent out two apartments as an investment property. Council Member Zishan
wanted to clarify that people renting single family homes and only renting to one family are allowed and
not subject to the same building code issues, only the single-family homes renting to two families as two
units.

Mayor Allen stated that there is owner occupied homes with family members living in the basement that
may be unsafe, but at least the owner is more likely to know about issues that may arise if they are living
in the home and more likely to keep up the property. Mayor Allen stated that many times it is hard to get a
hold of the property owner if there is a code issue, or any problems with the property.

Council Member West stated that Council needs to consider if they want to allow an ordinance which
would allow someone to make their single-family home into a legal non-conforming rental if they go
through the building process to do it correctly.

Hanson stated that Council can allow an ordinance that would be setting up an environment where they
could do it safely and properly, and the ordinance would let us set up parameters as to how many are
allowed within a certain zone. Hanson stated that the commitment is significant, and if owners do the
things to make the homes safe, an ordinance would give us more strength in regulating those we do

not allow.

CC Minutes 03-18-25



276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321

Mayor Allen stated that owners have an option to make it legal, although it would be costly. He noted that
residents might be upset that there are two families living in homes that are intended for one family. He
stated that there are still parking issues to consider.

Council Member West stated that there are homes in his area that are legal non-conforming that he
believes are owner occupied that are not impacting the neighborhood, however, there is one that does not
take care of the property and does have an impact to neighbors. He stated that there are impacts to
neighborhoods. He questioned if that outweighs the opportunity to the owners to make the homes legal.
Seaman stated that we are allowing the landlords to let the renters live in the home until the contract or
lease expires as staff and Council discuss the issue.

Seaman stated that zoning would not have to change to allow the rental units. He stated that we could add
an ordinance to the supplemental code noting that they are allowed within the confines of the building
code.

Council Member Zishan stated that it is too complicated for investment properties to become legal and
feels that the mayor’s comments are legitimate. Council Member West agreed that safety issues are a huge
concern, noting that all of the building code concerns would need to be addressed and not just some of
them.

Hanson stated that the city takes on liability if we allow someone to use property for purposes that are not
up to standard code. Seaman stated that we used to have zoning that allowed for duplexes in the past, and
that is why we have so many duplexes within the city.

Council Member Parkinson clarified if Seaman is asking for direction from Council as to whether or not
they would like him to take the item to Planning Commission for their input on the subject. Seaman stated
that he would like direction as to where Council would like to go with the item, as he would not write an
ordinance that Council will not approve.

Seaman stated that his main issue is safety. He stated that he educates people on why things are unsafe to
have. He stated that it can cause a lot of trouble if it is not done properly. Seaman noted that there was a
fire today in a city rental that had two bedrooms with seven people living in it and the rooms were
separated by a sheet. He stated that he does not know if the tenants are related, noting that there is a
possibility of seven cars taking up parking in that area.

Council Member Parkinson stated that she can see the benefits in having additional input from the
Planning Commission and members in the community who may be impacted.

Mayor Allen stated that he and the Council have received many complaints and calls concerning rental
properties within the city.

Seaman stated that an ordinance would be helpful from a building inspector and code enforcement
viewpoint because he would be able to give guidance on how to make things legal and done correctly.
Seaman stated that it is a matter of thinking it through and getting ahead of what is already here and help
people do what they are already doing, but within the correct guidelines.

Seaman stated that many cities do not allow two family homes. He stated that most of the cities have
accessory dwellings, but very few allow a single-family home turning into a double- family home in an
area zoned for single homes

CC Minutes 03-18-25



322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367

Mayor Allen stated that he feels that it is so unsafe that we should not even consider allowing it. Council
Member West and Council Member Thomas agreed. Council Member Zishan stated that he thinks that it
in instances like these, where they are not owner occupied, the direction should be clear-cut so the
landlords know exactly what would need to be done to make it legal.

Council Member West stated that to make it legal and do it correctly is expensive and only a handful of the
owners will do it. He noted that some will just do it anyway.

Council Member Parkinson asked Seaman if it is easier to enforce as we have the ordinance now. Seaman
stated that he can tell residents that the Council is not even discussing an ordinance and that their rental is
not an option. He stated that he tells them they are welcome to come to Council meetings to express their
opinion during public comment. He noted that he had spoken to several owners that knew of the discussion
tonight and they did not show up to the meeting.

Hanson stated that Council could make a motion that they are not interested in sending the item to
Planning Commission and allow staff to enforce the current ordinance. Staff will need clear direction if
Council is entertaining the idea or not.

Mayor Allen stated that there are so many issues associated with this and questioned how anyone could
think that this is safe and OK to do. He stated that Seaman is passionate about making sure the safety
regulations are followed. Seaman stated that it is important for him to help people understand the “why”.

Seaman stated that Washington Terrace is not the issue within the state as far as Moderate-Income
Housing. He stated that we do allow town homes within buildable areas. He stated that we are abiding by
the law. He stated that he appreciates Council direction either way.

Motion by Council Member West
Seconded by Council Member Thomas
To elect not to further the discussion
By passing it on to Planning Commission
And consider this the Council’s decision at this point
Approved unanimously (5-0)

8. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF

Council Member Christiansen stated that she used the non-emergency line on our website on the way over
to City Hall to report something that she saw. She stated that she believes it is a great system to have and
appreciates that we have the system.

Council Member Parkinson wanted to give a “shout out” to Utility Billing Specialist Ciara Rodriguez and
the front office staff. She stated that a resident informed her that he had an issue with a water leak and
worked with Ciara to figure out the problem and get it resolved. Parkinson stated that the resident said that
Ciara was kind and fantastic to work with.

Council Member Thomas stated that he has been asked by residents if roads 5100 South and 5000 South
by the school will be fixed by the School District after the completion of the construction of the school,

CC Minutes 03-18-25



368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378

379
380

381
382
383
384
385
386
387

388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398

stating that there may be infrastructure damage caused by the big construction trucks going in and out.
Hanson stated that he will speak with the Public Works Director concerning any repairs.

Mayor Allen reminded the Council to meet at 3:00 p.m. this Friday for the Central Weber Sewer District
tour.

9. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

Hanson stated that staff have been very busy working on the budget document.

Hanson stated that our City Prosecutor needs to work with computer access. Hanson stated that a monitor
and sound proofing has been set up for privacy in the corner office.

10. UPCOMING EVENTS
March 27" Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. Cancelled
April 1% City Council Work Session (5:00p.m.) and City Council Meeting (6:00 p.m.)
April 15%: City Council Work Session (5:00 p.m.) and City Council Meeting (6:00 p.m.)
April 16-18": ULCT Conference in St. George UT
April 24%: Planning Commission Meeting (tentative)

11. ADJOURN THE MEETING

Motion by Council Member Thomas
Seconded by Council Member Parkinson
To adjourn the meeting
Approved unanimously (5-0)
Time: 7:25 p.m.

Date Approved City Recorder

CC Minutes 03-18-25



4
t
]

1l
-3
.4

E

ity Manager's Message

Dear Honorable Mayor, City Council, and Residents of Washington Terrace,

| am delighted to present to you the Fiscal Year 2026 Tentative Budget and the 2026-2030 Budget Plan for
Washington Terrace City. This budget document provides detailed information on the financial condition of the
City from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026 (FY 2026) and our budget plan for FY 2027-30.

Our proactive budget strategy incorporates a short and long-term approach that considers not only the 2026
fiscal year but also contemplates a multi-year approach to a budget that reflects future consideration through
FY 2030. The Council Policy Priorities guide our budget discussions and are ultimately applied to the budget
plan.

Though we have been conservative in our budget plan methodology, we remain sound in our operational
productivity and capital requirements to support the stakeholders of the city and complete essential capital
projects, provide necessary services, protect our stakeholders, and create a sense of community while
recruiting and retaining highly talented and qualified workforce.

The budget reflects not only our financial obligations but also the policy priorities that guide the operational
and capital investments of our city. In FY 2025, our capital goals will focus on critical projects such as
completing phase three and four of the Rohmer Park project, road maintenance and reconstruction projects,
upgrading and replacing water lines, and removing and replacing sewer lines. These initiatives will play a
pivotal role in ensuring that our city's infrastructure is modernized and upgraded to meet the growing needs of
our community.

Capital investments are not limited to utility infrastructure alone but also include the improvements necessary
to provide reliable transportation, utility services, parks and other essential services.

As reflected in the Council Policy Priorities, grant funding is leveraged to support many aspects of the city that
require significant resources to accomplish. Grant funding has directly supported millions of dollars of projects
that would otherwise be the burden of the stakeholders of the city. In 2026 the city anticipates grant funds to
support park improvements for Rohmer Park phase three, safe sidewalk improvements, playground removal
and replacement and others.



T \
\\\\\\\\\\\

L I B

Due to the continuously increasing operational costs associated with contract services, the impact of inflation,
and the growing demand for retention and recruitment, there will continue to be annual increases in utility
fees. This budget proposal will avoid the need to raise taxes while at the same time ensuring that we maintain
the quality of services provided to our residents.

This budget is being presented for adoption as the official budget for Washington Terrace. Once adopted in its
final form, it will serve as a comprehensive guide to the services that are planned for the residents and patrons
of Washington Terrace. The budget has been designed to be regularly reviewed and used as a reference by
elected officials, city departments, and the public, providing a transparent overview of the city's finances and
how resources are being allocated to various programs and services.

The City of Washington Terrace places significant emphasis on adhering to the best practices outlined by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). Though time and resources
are limited, the city makes a concerted effort to create a comprehensive budget document that can be
reviewed and considered. This budget serves as a policy document, an operations guide, a financial plan, and a
communication device, providing clear program criteria to ensure transparency and accountability to the
public.

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to the Mayor, Council, and all the members of our staff who have
worked tirelessly to plan, prepare, and execute this budget. Their dedication and hard work have contributed
to making Washington Terrace a successful organization and a wonderful place to live and work. We are
excited about the upcoming year and look forward to continuing to serve the residents of Washington Terrace
City to the best of our abilities!

Sincerely,

Caa

Tom Hanson

VA \ \ )
[T N T N VO Ry
Vo Vot
(I Y N \
Ly 0 \




MAJOR BUDGET
PRIORITIES

ROHMER PARK
PICKLEBALL COMPLEX

PUBLIC SAFETY
POLICE SERVICES

HUMAN RESOURCES

COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT

UTILITY SERVICES
& USER FEES

MAJOR BUDGET PRIORITIES

The major budget priorities
outline the foundational prin-
ciples and key considerations
that guide the development of
the budget. These priorities
reflect the major issues and
challenges influencing budget
decisions. Additionally, the
budget represents a strategic
allocation of  resources,
aligned with the specific goals
and objectives of various pro-
grams and services. This en-
sures that funding is directed
toward areas of greatest need
and impact, supporting the
effective implementation of
key initiatives.

As staff continues to evaluate
and balance the current and
future program requirements
to the levels of services of-
fered, the analysis continues
to highlight the following
challenges facing each of
these services:

CAPITAL FINANCING

The ability to fund current
and future service levels
for general operations
and capital equipment
and infrastructure.

Unfunded federal and

state mandates.

Maintain strong credit-
worthiness.

Build/maintain reserves
for unforeseen events and
emergencies.

Keep taxes and fees as low
as possible while meeting
service level expectations.

Responding to economic
conditions.

It is anticipated that pay-as-you go, short-term and long-term
financing options will be necessary to fund capital infrastructure
and equipment. Financing strategies are evaluated to identify
challenges and opportunities including sustainability, timing,
and balance to deliver a stable level of essential services.

Staff has been diligent in seeking grant revenue to lessen the fi-
nancial burden of providing essential City services. Although the
availability and eligibility of grant assistance is extremely limited
and competitive, grant funding assistance will continue to be ac-

tively sought out.



ROHMER PARK PICKLEBALL COMPLEX

Legislative Policy Priority
Operation Excellence
Community Engagement
Fiscal Responsibility

ROHMER PARK PRIORITY

The completion of Rohmer Park was highly sup-
ported in the community survey, and the
Rohmer Park Pickleball Expansion is designed to
enhance community well-being by providing a
diverse range of recreational opportunities.
Phase I included the completion of the pickleball
courts and roadway, while Phase II focused on
the completion of the parking lot and children's
playground. These improvements helped create
a more accessible and enjoyable destination for
all.

The new rustic play area will offer engaging
spaces for children of all ages with active and
imaginative play, while shaded picnic areas cre-
ate welcoming spots for families and friends to
gather. The addition of a restroom facility en-
sures comfort and convenience, making the park
more inviting for everyone.

Rohmer park Pickleball Complex — Phase 3
rendering

Beyond physical activity, these enhancements
contribute to mental and emotional well-being.
Outdoor recreation in a thoughtfully designed
setting helps reduce stress, encourage relaxation,
and foster social connections. Whether through
play, exercise, or simply enjoying nature,
Rohmer Park offers a place for residents to re-
fresh and recharge.

Most importantly, the park serves as a hub for
community connection. By investing in this
phased expansion, the City has created more
than just a recreational space—it has built a wel-
coming destination where residents of all ages
can come together, stay active, and strengthen
their sense of belonging.

ROHMER PARK FUTURE
PROJECTS

Phase III of the Rohmer Park expansion will en-
hance the visitor experience with the addition of
a new restroom facility, a shaded picnic area for
gatherings, and a rustic playground designed to
blend with the park’s natural surroundings.

This phase will also improve overall connectivity
within the park, ensuring better access to future
trails and amenities.



ROHMER PARK PICKLEBALL COMPLEX

o Legislative Policy Priority
Operational Excellence
Community Engagement
Fiscal Responsibility

ROHMER PARK FUTURE
PROJECTS continued

Looking ahead, Phase IV will complete the hillside
development with a dedicated dog park, providing a
space for pet owners to gather while their dogs play.
This final phase will also complete a small gathering area, offering a serene setting for relaxation and
community connection, rounding out the park as a welcoming destination for all.

The City will continue to aim for additional grant funding for Phase IV, which will complete the hillside
development with a dedicated dog park and finalize a small gathering area for relaxation and community
connection.

Grant funding will play a crucial role in realizing the full vision for Rohmer Park, ensuring it remains a
vibrant and welcoming destination for residents.

FISCAL IMPACT

To fund Phase III, the City successfully secured $500,000 from the Weber County RAMP Committee,
with the city contributing $466,575 in matching funds, bringing the total investment to $966,575.

This phase will add a new restroom facility, a shaded picnic area, and a rustic playground while improving
overall park connectivity.

Phase IIT anticipated annual O&M cost of $6,400 funds have been proposed (tentative) for funding.

oA

Rohmer park Pickleball Complex — Phase 3—Play Area

rendering



PUBLIC SAFETY | POLICE

Legislative Policy Priority
Community Safety

The City contracts law enforcement services
with the Weber County Sheriff’s Office. This
contract represents the largest General Fund
department.

Though a considerable expenditure, the essen-
tial services provided by the Sheriff’s Office are
significant in the benefit they provide to the
community. Working with the Sheriff’s Office
has proved to be beneficial to the protection of
life and property of the stakeholders of the City.

FISCAL IMPACT

The cost for contract law enforcement services is
determined by a cost allocation formula. In FY
2022, the cost allocation formula changed from
50/50 calls for service/population to 60/40 calls
for service/population. This change resulted in
an cost increase for the City.

The cost for services for Fiscal Year 2025-26 is
estimated at $1,202,214 an 8% or $106,155 in-
crease.+

While future contract increases are uncertain,
the budget plan estimates 7% annual increases
or $93K average annual.

Major cost drivers for Fiscal Year 2025-26
are attributed:

e H.B. 84—School Security Chief

In 2024 H.B. 84 passed. This bill mandates es-
tablishing a system for school safety incidents
including creating a position of a school security
chief.

¢ Wages & Benefits
Regular wages and benefits that includes a 2%
cost of living adjustment.

¢ Employee Retention Payments
One-time incentive payments for employee re-
tention.

The County is currently undergoing a salary and
wage study to determine wage competitiveness
to address employee retention and recruitment
challenges. The impacts and findings of this
study are yet to be determined.


https://www.webercountyutah.gov/sheriff/

HUMAN RESOURCES

Legislative Policy Priority
Operational Excellence

INVESTING IN OUR WORKFORCE
Employees are the backbone of the City, ensuring
the delivery of essential services that sustain and
enhance our community. Without a highly skilled
and dedicated workforce, the City could not fulfill
its mission to provide life-sustaining services that
uphold our residents' quality of life. Recognizing
this, the Mayor and Council have made employee
recruitment and retention a central focus of our
Operational Excellence policy priority.

PAY PLAN TO BENCHMARK

The FY 2025-26 benchmark analysis was com-
pleted in December, 2024. The City compensa-
tion strategy uses the average range from 15 coun-
cil-approved benchmark cities. The goal of the
benchmark analysis is not to “lead the pack”,
while also staying competitive within the fields
needed to effectively serve the City.

WAGE GROWTH

According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, We-
ber County has experienced wage growth trends
that reflect a broader economic pattern. Wage
gains rose from 1.2% (pre-pandemic, 2019-20) to
8.8% in 2023. As anticipated, the rapid wage
growth of recent years has begun to stabilize, with
a 2024 increase of 4.3%. This trend aligns with
the City's benchmark analysis and informs our
approach to employee compensation.

As part of our commitment to a strong workforce,
the Mayor and Council prioritize competitive
compensation in our budget strategy. We conduct
an annual market analysis to ensure our pay
structure remains aligned with industry standards
and comparable cities. While fiscal responsibility
is key, our goal is to offer competitive wages and
benefits to attract and retain top talent. For the
FY 2025-26 tentative budget, the proposed pay
compensation plan is estimated at $3.34M—an
increase of $80K (approximately 3%) over the
2025 budget. Of this, $2.55M is allocated to sala-
ries, while $788K will fund benefits and other
personnel costs. The plan includes a projected 2%
increase in base pay and a 6% adjustment in ancil-
lary benefits, reflecting our ongoing dedication to
maintaining a strong and motivated workforce.

HUMAN RESOURC

BENEFITS
Major benefit cost drivers are health/dental cov-
erage and retirement benefits.

Health coverage offered by PEHP has a July 1,
2025, estimated renewal rate increase of 5.5% for
traditional medical plans and 5.5 % for H.S.A
plans; dental renewal rates are expected to remain
flat. The employees’ share of health/dental premi-
ums is 10% and the City’s share is 90%. The City
began offering an “Opt-Out Program” incentive in
Fiscal year 2021-2022. Under this program, an
employee may “opt out” of taking insurance bene-
fits from the city if they can show proof of compa-
rable insurance elsewhere. The Employee would
receive 30% percent of what the city would be ex-
pected to pay in their premiums. This option has
been taken by several employees. Since starting
the program in FY 2021-2022, the City has saved
$211K in premiums. Fiscal year 2025-26 is ex-
pected to save $54K in insurance premiums under
this program.



https://chatgpt.com?q=Bureau%20of%20Labor%20Statistics

Fiscal Year
2025-26

Tentative

FISCAL
IMPACT

Personnel
(W&B)

$3.34M
or

an increase of
$80K or 3%

Wages (W)
$2.55M
or

an increase of
$80Kor 3 %

Benefits (B)
$788K

or

a decrease of
$5K or —1%

HUMAN RESOURCES coNTIUED

Legislative Policy Priority
Operational Excellence

BENEFITS CONTINUED

Retirement benefits are administered
through Utah Retirement Systems. Pre-
liminary rates released expect that the
Public Employees’ Noncontributory Tier 1
System employer contribution rate will
have a decrease of 1% with a contribution
rate of 15.97. The Tier 2 system will also
have a decrease at 1.7% with a contribu-
tion rate of 14.19 of eligible gross wages/
salary.

PERSONNEL CHANGES

Temporary Crossing Guard |
Leisure Services & Recreation
Department

Increases to the Parks and Recreation
Department FY2025-26 budget include
an additional (temporary) crossing guard
position. This position was added in No-
vember 2024 when it became apparent
that an extra crossing guard was needed
to help with safety concerns during the
construction of the new Roosevelt Ele-
mentary. The fiscal impact is $7,251.

HUMAN R

ESOURC




Legislative Policy Priority

Community & Economic Development

Community and Economic Development has long
been a top priority for the Mayor and City Council,
even as we recognize the challenges that come with
limited developable space and fluctuating market
conditions. Commercial development, in particular,
presents unique financial and logistical hurdles, as it
requires not only available land but also viable mar-
ket demand and committed developers with the re-
sources to see projects through to completion.

The RDA is designed to facilitate projects that may
not otherwise come to fruition without financial sup-
port, and its ability to continue doing so is directly
tied to the success of redevelopment efforts. As fu-
ture projects arise, the city must work strategically to
allocate RDA resources in a way that maximizes eco-
nomic growth while ensuring that incentives contin-
ue to generate a strong return on investment for the
community.

The City remains committed to fostering quality de-
velopment that strengthens the local economy while
maintaining fiscal responsibility. Moving forward, a
key focus will be on sustaining the RDA’s ability to
support infrastructure improvements and attract
investment, ensuring that economic development
remains a driving force without placing additional
financial burdens on city taxpayers.

Leveraging Recent Economic Development
Projects

Despite these challenges, Washington Terrace has
achieved significant development successes in recent
years. One of the most notable projects has been the
Goldenwest Credit Union (GWCU) office building,
one of the city’s largest real estate projects to date.
This success was possible due to a combination of

factors: a business dedicated to remaining in the
community, a robust financial position to fund the
project, and critical support from the Washington
Terrace Redevelopment Area (RDA). The RDA
played a key role in providing the necessary infra-
structure incentives, and city staff worked diligently
to streamline the development process, ensuring
efficiency and feasibility.

Current Economic Development Projects

Building on this success, the city welcomed another
major development—the 5580 Adams Avenue pro-
ject. Though not as large, this project mirrors the
GWCU development in its economic impact, featur-
ing a quality office building that aligns with the city’s
long-term vision for commercial growth. The city-
owned land was strategically sold to the developer
through the RDA, ensuring that it not only contrib-
uted to economic activity but also generated much-
needed revenue earmarked for park development.

FISCAL IMPACT

Importantly, the financial incentives for the 5580
Adams Avenue project did not come from city tax
revenues but rather from the RDA. The RDA utilizes
tax increment financing (TIF), meaning the funds
come from the increased property tax revenue gen-
erated by the redevelopment itself—funds that would
have otherwise gone to other taxing entities through-
out the county. In this case, the RDA committed one
time payment of $100,000 for the construction of
infrastructure improvements necessary for the pro-
ject’s success. The return on this investment is pro-
jected to be recouped within 10 years, ensuring long-
term benefits for the city without drawing on its gen-
eral fund.

5580 Adams Ave Project rendering

—.

WEST ELEVATION
Tt 7 =S



PUBLIC UTILITIES & USER FEES

Legislative Policy Priority
Fiscal Responsibility

Operational Excellence

GARBAGE & RECYCLING

The City provides comprehensive garbage and recycling services, which include:

eWeekly curbside garbage collection

eBi-weekly curbside recycling services

eFall and spring green waste drop-off sites

eDistribution and maintenance of garbage and recycling carts

These services are designed to support efficient waste management and promote sustainability in our com-

Major Budget Priorities | Fiscal Year 2025-26

1) Waste Collection | Republic Services is the City’s curbside waste collection provider. Collec-
tion Fees are expected to increase by 5.2%. Contract rates are adjusted to the Waster Sewer Trash Index
(CPI-U) for the preceding calendar year. Future rate
increases are estimated at 5% annually through
2030.

Additionally, fuel recovery fees are imposed when
diesel fuel prices exceed $4.00/gallon.

Collection costs are estimated to reach $365K in
2026.

2) Waste Disposal | Weber Transfer Station
is the City’s non-recyclable waste processor. Dis-
posal Fees are expected to increase by 5% increasing
from $50.00 to $52.50/ton. Disposal costs are ex-

pected to reach $180K.

Wasatch Integrated Waste is the City’s recyclable
material waste processor. Processing fees are expected
to remain at $50.00/ton. Processing fees are expected
to reach $12K.

Total waste disposal costs are projected to reach
$192K.

3) Personnel & Overhead requirements of
$131K are expected to increase by 4% or $5K from the
prior year.



https://www.republicservices.com/
http://www.webercountyutah.gov/Solid_Waste/
https://www.wasatchintegrated.org/



https://weberbasin.gov/



https://www.centralweberut.gov/










City of
WasHINGTON T ERRACE
V7274

City of Washington Terrace
Redevelopment Agency Meeting
Tuesday, April 1, 2025
following the Regular City Council Meeting
City Hall Council Chambers
5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City

As a public service, Council and Redevelopment Meetings are streamed on the City of
Washington Terrace YouTube channel: www.youtube.com@ WashingtonTerraceCity

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PERMISSION NOTICE

By attending this meeting/event, you consent to the use of your photograph, voice, likeness, and image in
broadcasts of this meeting/event, and in subsequent productions drawn from video or audio recordings of
this meeting/event, in the sole and absolute discretion of the City of Washington Terrace. The city retains
copyright for all video and audio recordings. Video and audio recordings may not be modified,
manipulated, or distributed in any way without the express written consent of the City Manager.

1. ROLL CALL

2. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

3. CONSENT ITEMS

Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need to be addressed
here prior to the approval of the agenda.

3.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA
3.2 APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FROM SEPTEMBER 3, 2024

4. NEW BUSINESS
4.1 PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION: 5580 SOUTH ADAMS AVENUE

PROJECT UPDATE
A budget priority discussion on the 5580 South Adams Avenue Project.

5. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING: CHAIR ALLEN

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING
I, Amy Rodriguez, The undersigned duly appointed City Recorder of the City of Washington Terrace do hereby certify
that the above agenda was posted in three public places within the City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at
least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

For Packet Information, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.org



0O JON DN B~ W

AR DPE,PE PR D WLLWLWLWLWWLWLWWWRNDNDODNDNODNDNDNODND === == =
NN NPHAE WL OOV NDE WD, OO IANNDEDE WD, OOV WNIRA WD —O N0

City of Washington Terrace
Minutes of a Redevelopment Meeting
Held on September 3, 2024
Following the Regular City Council Meeting
City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, Utah

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Chair Mark C. Allen

Board Member Jill Christiansen

Board Member Zunayid Z. Zishan

Board Member Cheryl Parkinson

Vice Chair West

Board Member Michael Thomas

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

Others Present
Kirk Johnson, Jeremy Krause

1. ROLL CALL

2. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

Hanson introduced Jeremy Krause and Kirk Johnson. He stated that he appreciates their help in
getting the project underway. Kirk Johnson stated that he is a financial advisor and is anticipating
calling the new project as his business home for the next 25-30 years. He stated that there are
several other business partners who will be partnering with him.

3. CONSENT ITEMS

3.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA
3.2 APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FROM AUGUST 6, 2024
Items 3.1 and 3.2 were approved by general consent.

4. NEW BUSINESS

4.1 PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION: UNDERSTANDING THE USE OF

A REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (RDA)

Hanson stated that the project will be in the Redevelopment Agency in the Southeast area, in
which the Council serves as the Board Members.
Hanson stated that we have seen amazing success with Golden West Credit Union. He stated that
he is excited for the upcoming project. Hanson stated that the whole point of an RDA is to move
projects and developments to the finish line.
Hanson stated that there are revenue reserves to be used as tax incentive, or incentives for
projects in the RDA area.

Hanson stated that the project tonight is 5580 South Adams Avenue. He stated that the Board
worked in confidential parameters so that we could negotiate in private for land sales. Hanson

RDA Minutes 09-03-24



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63

64
65

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
&9
90
91
92
93
94

stated that the sale price negotiated is $650,000. Hanson stated that there is an area on the
property that is restricted. It will be owned by the land owner, however, nothing can be built on
the property, per agreements with the Library. Hanson stated that the building will have two
office suites on the north and south end of the main floors. He stated that there will be an upstairs
which reflects the lower floor. Hanson stated that the goal was to get a project that was as least
10,000 square feet. He stated that a larger footprint will yield a larger tax value. He stated that
Class A office works for the city. The proposed project will be 14,545 square feet.

Hanson stated that the city may receive tax revenues of $8,045 yearly, over $160,892 over 20
years. Hanson stated that the county wide taxing entities will receive $47,733 yearly. Over 20
years they will receive $954,675 in tax revenues. Hanson stated that this is one of the goals of the
RDA and why taxing entities buy into an RDA.

Hanson stated that the city will break even within two years if they authorize a $100,000 tax
incentive.

5 SPECIAL ORDER

5.1 PUBLIC HEARING: TO HEAR COMMENT IN SUPPORT AND
OPPOSITION TO A PROPOSAL TO SURPLUS ALL OF WEBER PARCEL
NUMBER: 070370031

Hanson stated that the Board needs to designate the property as surplus so that it can be sold.
Hanson stated that surplus is official designation that it is property that we are not going to be
using for other things.

Chair Allen opened the public hearing at 7:00 p.m.
There were no citizen comments.
Chair Allen closed the public hearing at 7:01 p.m.

5.2 PUBLIC HEARING: TO HEAR COMMENT IN SUPPORT AND
OPPOSITION TO A PROPOSAL TO SELL WEBER PARCEL NUMBER:
070370031

Hanson stated that staff proposes selling the property as indicated in the sale agreement for
$650,000, which is fair market value. He stated that the sale of the property will have a sunset
agreement to be completed within two years, with an extension of one year if there are
circumstances that prevent them from finishing the project. The incentive is referenced in the
purchase agreement. The incentive is a separate agreement.

Chair Allen opened the public hearing at 7:02 p.m.

There were no citizen comments.
Chair Allen closed the public hearing at 7:03 p.m.

6 NEW BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

6.1 MOTION/RESOLUTION 24-11: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE



95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104

105
106

107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120

121
122

123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141

SURPLUS OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY OWNED BY THE CITY/AND
OR REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Motion by Board Member West
Seconded by Board Member Parkinson
To designate the property as surplus and to
To approve Resolution 24-11
Authorizing the surplus of Certain Real Property owned by
The City /and or Redevelopment Agency
Approved unanimously (5-0)
Roll Call Vote

6.2 MOTION/RESOLUTION 24-12: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
SALE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY OWNED BY THE CITY/AND OR
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Board Member Christiansen thanked the developers for bringing a quality product to the City
and working with us through the long process.

Motion by Board Member Christiansen
Seconded by Board Member West
To approve Resolution 24-12
Authorizing the sale of Certain Real Property owned by the City/and or
Redevelopment Agency
Approved unanimously (5-0)
Roll call vote

6.3 MOTION/RESOLUTION 24-13: APPROVAL OF INCENTIVE FOR 5580
SOUTH ADAMS AVENUE PROJECT
Hanson stated that there will be cumbersome underground storm water detention storage, fire
hydrant and curb and gutter work.
Hanson stated that at the completion of the project, an incentive of $100,000 can be requested
per the incentive agreement to help with the infrastructure projects.

Motion by Board Member West
Seconded by Board Member Parkinson
To approve Resolution 24-13
Authorizing the incentive payment at the completion of the project
Or certificate of Occupancy
Approved unanimously (5-0)
Roll Call Vote

RDA Minutes 09-03-24



142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152

6. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING: CHAIR ALLEN

Motion by Board Member Christiansen
Seconded by Board Member Thomas
To adjourn the meeting
Approved unanimously (5-0)
Time: 7:09 p.m.

Date Approved

City Recorder



	09-03-24  RDA MEETING MINUTES.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT


